

# CONSULTATION ON CHANGES TO THE ACCOUNTING DIRECTION

**Decision statement** 

September 2015

## Consultation on changes to the Accounting Direction for private registered providers of social housing – decision statement

#### Introduction

- 1 In March 2015 the Social Housing Regulator (the regulator) published a revised regulatory framework needed to reflect a rapidly changing sector. A part of that included changes to the Disposal Proceeds Fund regime and a declaration by providers of compliance with the governance and financial viability standard, taking effect for financial years commencing 1 April 2015.
- 2 The sector has also been subject to a new accounting standard, the Financial Reporting Standard (FRS 102), and an associated Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) for registered social housing providers. These all led to a need to review the accounting direction along with taking the opportunity for other updating, clarification and removal of sections no longer seen as necessary.
- 3 In March 2015 the regulator issued a consultation paper proposing changes to its Accounting Direction. The proposals built on discussions with stakeholders within the sector and covered the issues mentioned above. A full statutory consultation process was held which closed in June 2015.

#### Feedback overview

- Responses to the consultation were received from a range of different stakeholders, primarily representing the professional firms who provide an external audit service to registered providers. The Social Housing sub-committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and Wales responded, along with the SORP Working Party. Both of these bodies are comprised of auditors, senior finance staff from individual private registered providers and other sector stakeholders.
- The responses to the consultation have informed the final outcome set out in this document. In addition, the regulator held a number of stakeholder engagement events to discuss the proposals, including round tables and bilateral meetings with provider representatives and trade bodies. The stakeholder views expressed at these events have also been taken into account in the development of proposals.
- This document provides a summary of the key areas of feedback and sets out the regulator's decision on changes to the regulatory framework that will have effect from 1 April 2015. It is not intended to be an exhaustive exploration of all responses received, but a summary of the key issues and comments made. A list of respondents is provided in Annex 1.
- Of those who gave feedback on the proposed changes to the direction, the vast majority of responses were in favour of the proposed direction. Nobody was against changes being made. Many of the feedback points provided were correction of minor errors or omissions, technical points and suggestions intended to provide greater clarity to users or consistency with other financial reporting requirements. A number of suggestions were accepted and revisions made to the final version of the direction.

#### **Summary of main responses**

- 8 The responses received generally matched those comments made in advance of the formal consultation and were fairly consistent, covering the following areas:
  - The greatest number of responses received covered the value for money (VfM) statement. It continues to be a cause of unease as it is stated to lead to over-long narrative reports. However, it is an existing regulatory requirement and a change was made to the direction to clarify that further details may be made available elsewhere rather than just within the accounts. It is hoped that this change will overcome this criticism. The statement remains a key part of the regulatory framework (which was subject to separate consultation) so no further changes are proposed, as the VfM statement was not a part of this consultation.
  - Several responses suggested that a basic 'ground upwards' review be made of the
    direction rather than updating previous versions. In publishing the update we have
    been cognisant of the need to cut out duplication and any unnecessary disclosures
    but also have to ensure that providers with varying forms of constitutional structure
    give the consistent accounting disclosures that we require.
  - Most other replies were technical in nature, intended to make points within the direction clearer, more consistent or provide more detail.
  - On accounting policies one comment suggested that the detail provided should be excluded as it partially repeats comments in FRS 102 and the SORP. However this had been widely discussed earlier and it had been considered useful to highlight those areas that might be expected to contribute to volatility of results reported in accounts from year to year. A footnote has been added to point out that the list is not meant to be exhaustive and that other material items should be included. The government policy changes in the July 2015 budget may lead providers to review valuations and an additional bullet point has been added to draw attention to impairment disclosures.
  - The SORP recommends the inclusion of a strategic report for larger (>5k units) providers. The direction adds further weight to this but the paragraph has been reworded to avoid confusion with our definition of "large" provider (>1k units).
  - Several responses suggested including reference to business model and key financial and non-financial indicators within strategic reports. This has been included.
  - There were comments about capital grant disclosures which have been amended to improve clarity.
  - It was suggested that the external audit disclosure be updated to reflect recent Companies Act changes. This has been done, including revising the wording to make it more consistent with the terminology used there. We do not support fully replicating Companies Act disclosures as that would involve an excessive level of analysis.

### Final position – Accounting Direction:

With effect from April 2015, the accounting direction for private registered providers of social housing will be as set out at Annex 2

#### List of consultation respondents

The following list gives details of those individuals and organisations who responded to the consultation.

#### **Registered providers**

Plymouth Community Housing

#### Sector audit firms

**BDO** 

Beever and Struthers

**Grant Thornton** 

**KPMG** 

PricewaterhouseCoopers

#### **Others**

Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales - Social Housing Sub-Committee

National Housing Federation/ SORP Working Party

2 x individual responses

## The Accounting Direction for private registered providers of social housing from April 2015

September 2015

#### **Contents**

Note/Paragra	ph Numbers
Overview	1-4
Commencement and requirements	5-8
The Schedule to the Accounting Direction for private registered providers of social housing 2015	
Part 1	
Particulars of turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus	Note A
Particulars of turnover and operating expenditure from Social Housing lettings	Note B
Part 2	
Establishment of private registered provider	1
Financial reporting standards	2
Accounting policies	3
Analysis of intra Group transactions between PRPs and non-PRPs	4-5
Narrative reporting	6-9
Extension of definition of Director	10
Key Management Personnel	11-17
Consideration for Directors' services	18-19
Employees	20
Social housing turnover and costs	21
Financial Assistance and other government grant receivable	22
External auditors	23-24
Share capital	25
Creditors including Recycled Capital Grant Fund	26-28
Disposal Proceeds Fund	29
Rent arrears	30

Charges	31
Capital funding and commitments	32
Other commitments	33
Accommodation owned and in management	34
Accommodation managed by others	35
Related parties	36
Group structures	37
Glossary of terms	Annex 1
Format for disclosure of RCGF balances	Annex 2
Format for disclosure of DPF balances	Annex 3

#### Overview

- Private registered providers of social housing (PRPs) are required by Section 127 of the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 (the Act) to comply with a direction of the regulator about the preparation of their accounts; and are required by Section 177(4) of the Act to constitute their Disposal Proceeds Fund (DPF) and to show the DPF in their accounts in accordance with a direction of the regulator.
- 2 The regulator has power under s127 and s177(4) of the Act to:
  - Give directions to PRPs about the preparation of their accounts (in relation to profit-making PRPs, only in so far as its accounts relate to Social Housing Activities). The power must be exercised with a view to ensuring that accounts are prepared in a proper form and present a true and fair view of the state of affairs in relation to the PRP's Social Housing Activities and the disposition of funds and assets which are, or have been, in the PRP's hands in connection with those activities.
  - Direct how PRPs must constitute and present a DPF in their accounts.
- This document (*Accounting Direction for private registered providers of social housing 2015*) sets out the regulator's directions about how PRPs must prepare their accounts in relation to the matters set out above. The regulator, as required by section 127(6) of the Act, has consulted with one or more bodies appearing to the regulator to represent the interests of PRPs.
- This Direction is made without prejudice to the regulator's power to make specific directions under the provisions of the Act. Where reference is made to any legislation, standard or guidance which is subsequently amended or replaced, then the later publication should be taken to apply to this direction until such time it is revised.

#### **Commencement and requirements**

- This Direction has effect in relation to periods of account beginning on or after 1 April 2015. It supersedes the requirements of the *Accounting Direction for private* registered providers of social housing 2012. The 2012 Direction continues to apply to accounts for periods beginning before 1 April 2015 although earlier adoption of the 2015 Direction is permitted, and recommended in the case of early adoption of FRS 102.
- This Direction applies to PRPs in terms of the preparation of their accounts<sup>1</sup> and to profit-making PRPs only in so far as their accounts relate to Social Housing Activities<sup>2</sup>.
- 7 The regulator directs:
- 7.1 In accordance with section 177(4) of the Act, that PRPs must constitute and present a DPF in their accounts in accordance with Part 2 paragraph 29 of the Schedule.
- 7.2 In accordance with section 127 of the Act as follows, every PRP must prepare their accounts:
  - a. If a Large PRP, so that:
  - (i) if they are a non-profit PRP, information is shown in accordance with Part 1 of the Schedule
  - (ii) if they are a profit-making PRP, information is shown in accordance with Part 1 of the Schedule but only in so far as its accounts relate to Social Housing Activities
  - b. For all PRPs (whether or not a Large PRP), so that:
  - (i) if they are a non-profit PRP, information is shown in accordance with Part 2 of the Schedule
  - (ii) if they are a profit-making PRP, information is shown in accordance with Part 2 of the Schedule but only in so far as its accounts relate to Social Housing Activities
- 8 Unless required otherwise in this Direction, a PRP will still comply with this Direction if:
  - 8.1 Where information is required in a specified form, the PRP prepares that information in a form substantially to the same effect as that specified
  - 8.2 Where the PRP is the parent organisation within a Group structure, that PRP prepares consolidated financial statements where it is permitted by legislation and financial reporting standards, including FRS 102, to do so

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 s127(1)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 s127(2)

- 8.3 Differences to the requirements of this Direction are required in order to comply with the applicable laws, regulations and accounting standards and associated guidelines (including SORP)
- 8.4 More information is given than is required by this Direction
- 8.5 Save as is indicated otherwise OR in relation to paragraphs 28 and 29 of the Schedule Part 2, in providing the information required by Part 1 of the Schedule to this Direction, lines with a nil value can be omitted and lines where the value is not material can be aggregated

## The Schedule to the Accounting Direction for private registered providers of social housing 2015

Pa	rt	1

See paragraph 7.2.a of the Direction: every Large PRP must prepare their accounts so that the information in Notes A and B below is shown (in relation to profit-making PRPs, only in so far as its accounts relate to Social Housing Activities)

### Note A – Particulars of turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating surplus

Turnover	Cost of	Operating	Operating
	Sales	Expenditure	Surplus /(Deficit)
£	£	£	£

Social	Housing	Lettings	(Note	B)

Other Social Housing Activities:

First tranche low cost home ownership sales

Charges for support services

Other

Activities other than Social	

Housing Activities		
Total		
Notes:		

- 1. Material items of Social Housing Activity should be separately identified, in particular surpluses on the disposal of properties.
- 2. Where material sums are involved, additional analysis should be provided. This might, for example, distinguish between market rent, student accommodation or other significant areas of income such as surpluses on the disposal of property other than Social Housing.

Note B - Particulars of turnover and operating expenditure from Social Housing Lettings

	General Needs Housing	Supported Housing and Housing for Older People	Other <sup>3</sup>	2XX1 Total	2XX0 Total
Income	£	£	£	£	£

Rent receivable net of identifiable service charges<sup>4</sup>

Service charge income

Amortised government grants<sup>5</sup>

Government grants taken to income<sup>6</sup>

Other grants

**Turnover from Social Housing Lettings** 

#### **Operating expenditure**

Management

Service charge costs

Routine maintenance

Planned maintenance

Major repairs expenditure

Bad debts

Depreciation of housing properties

Impairment of housing properties

Other costs

Additional categories of social housing may be included where appropriate for the PRP
 Rent receivable should be computed net of any voids
 Amortised government grant as required under the accrual model as defined in FRS 102

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Government grant taken to income as required under the performance model as defined in FRS 102

## Operating expenditure on Social Housing Lettings

## Operating surplus/(deficit) on Social Housing Lettings

Void losses (being rental income lost as a result of property not being let, although it is available for letting)

#### Part 2

See paragraph 7.2.b of the Direction: all PRPs must prepare their accounts so that information is shown in accordance with this Part 2 of the Schedule (in relation to profitmaking PRPs, only in so far as its accounts relate to Social Housing Activities).

#### Other information to be shown in the financial statements

#### Establishment of private registered provider

1 A statement of the legislative provisions under which the PRP is established.

#### Financial reporting standards

Whether the accounts have been prepared in accordance with relevant financial reporting standards, including FRS 102; where applicable, SORP; and this Direction. Particulars of and reasons for any material departures from those should be stated.

#### **Accounting policies**

- PRPs should ensure that they adopt accounting policies most appropriate to their circumstances for the purpose of giving a true and fair view, with sufficient information disclosed to enable stakeholders to understand them. Where material, accounts should clearly set out policies<sup>7</sup> in relation to:
  - treatment of government grant and Financial Assistance
  - recognition and measurement of financial instruments
  - valuation of housing and other properties including the use of fair values or deemed cost (as defined in FRS 102) within the PRP's financial statements
  - details of impairment of assets assessed, along with indicators considered<sup>8</sup>
  - property, plant and equipment
  - liabilities in respect of multi-employer pension schemes

#### Analysis of intra Group transactions between PRPs and non-PRPs

- 4 Every PRP shall demonstrate a transparency in the flow of funds, allocation of overheads and transactions between registered and unregistered entities within the Group.
- Where a PRP transacts with an Associate, Subsidiary or other Group member which is not a PRP or is an unregistered entity, financial statements prepared shall:
  - describe the basis of any significant apportionment, recharge or allocation of turnover, costs, assets and liabilities between the PRP and the other party
  - specify in aggregate the turnover, costs, assets or liabilities which have been so apportioned or allocated

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> This is not an exhaustive list. Material areas should be covered – refer to the SORP and FRS 102 for further details

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> See SORP para 14.43-45 and FRS 102 para 27.32-33 for disclosures

specify which Associates, Subsidiaries or other Group members have been involved in the apportionment or allocation

#### **Narrative reporting**

- The financial statements should be accompanied by a narrative report applicable to 6 the constitutional structure of the PRP. This may be a strategic<sup>9</sup> report or Directors' report (or equivalent) covering the development and provision of Social Housing and Social Housing Activities for the period.
- PRPs with at least 5,000 homes<sup>10</sup> are expected to produce a strategic report. Smaller 7 PRPs are encouraged to publish a report commensurate with the size of the business. The report should provide a balanced and comprehensive but concise analysis consistent with the size and complexity of the business of the:
  - PRP's development and performance during the financial year, including an assessment of the business model used and key financial and non-financial indicators
  - effects of material estimates and judgements upon reported performance
  - principal risks and uncertainties facing the PRP, including factors arising from subsidiaries or joint ventures
  - main trends and factors underlying the development, performance and position of the PRP (or Group) and which are likely to affect it in the future
- 8 The PRP should undertake and publish within its narrative report an assessment of the performance of the PRP for the year which sets out to stakeholders how it is achieving value for money in delivering its purpose and objectives, in accordance with the regulator's standard on value for money. Where providers have published a separate, more detailed self-assessment than that included in the narrative report, this should be clearly signposted in order to ensure transparency for stakeholders.
- 9 PRPs should undertake an assessment of the PRP's compliance with the governance and financial viability standard at least once a year and the PRP must certify compliance with the standard within the narrative report or explain if not. Any non-compliance identified since the previous report should be explained. The code of governance that has been adopted by the PRP should also be disclosed.

#### **Extension of definition of Director**

10 In paragraphs 11 to 19 below, 'Director' also includes the Chief Executive and any other person who is a member of the executive management team, or its equivalent, of the PRP.

#### **Key Management Personnel**

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> FRC Guidance on the Strategic Report

10 Based upon the level recommended within the SORP

- 11 Remuneration paid to Key Management Personnel in relation to the period of account or, where no such remuneration are so payable, a statement to that effect. The aggregate amount disclosed should separately identify sums paid to non-executive Board members, where remunerated. If non-executive Board members are not remunerated, a statement should be made to this effect.
- The remuneration payable to the highest paid Director in relation to the period of account, excluding pension contributions.
- The full time equivalent number of staff whose remuneration payable in relation to the period of account fell within each band of £10,000 from £60,000 upwards. This should also include compensation for loss of office.
- Details of the nature of the Chief Executive's or equivalent's pension arrangements stating:
  - (a) the nature of the pension scheme and how it is funded
  - (b) whether he or she is an ordinary member of the pension scheme
  - (c) whether any enhanced or special terms apply
  - (d) whether he or she has an individual pension arrangement (including a personal pension) to which the PRP or any of its subsidiaries makes a contribution, and if so, the aggregate amount of contribution made by the PRP and its subsidiaries.
- In paragraphs 11 to 14 above, remuneration includes payments in respect of a Director's services as a Director of the PRP or the Director's services (while a Director of the PRP) in connection with the management of its affairs or the affairs of any Subsidiary of the PRP, whether those amounts are payable by the PRP, a parent body or any of its Subsidiaries, and includes<sup>11</sup>:
  - (a) wages and salaries, including performance related pay, payable for the period
  - (b) fees and dividends
  - (c) sums payable by way of expense allowance (so far as chargeable to United Kingdom tax)
  - (d) contributions payable in respect of pensions
  - (e) the estimated money value of any other benefits otherwise than in cash
- The aggregate amount of any compensation payable to Directors or past Directors in relation to the period of account in respect of loss of office (whether by retirement or otherwise).
- 17 The aggregate amount of Directors' or past Directors' pensions recognised within the financial statements for the year. This amount does not include any pension payable

-

 $<sup>^{\</sup>rm 11}$  See also Section 28 of FRS 102 - "Employee benefits" and Chapter 15 of the SORP

or receivable under a pension scheme if the scheme is such that the contributions under it are substantially adequate for maintenance of the scheme. The amount shown shall distinguish between pensions in respect of services as Director, whether of the PRP or any of its Subsidiaries, and other pensions.

#### **Consideration for Directors' services**

- The aggregate amount of any consideration payable to or receivable by third parties in relation to the period of account for making available the services of any person to perform in the role of Director of the PRP, or (while a Director of the PRP) in connection with the management of the affairs of the PRP or the affairs of any Subsidiary of the PRP. 'Third parties' means persons other than a Director or a person connected with the Director or a body corporate controlled (within the meaning of section 255 of the Companies Act 2006) by that Director and the PRP or any of its Subsidiary.
- In paragraph 18 above, amounts to be disclosed include benefits otherwise than in cash and, in relation to such amounts, reference to the amounts are to be the estimated money value of the benefit. The nature of such benefits should be disclosed.

#### **Employees**

The average number of employees employed during the period of account expressed in full time equivalents, to be calculated on a basis disclosed by the PRP.

#### Social housing turnover and costs

- 21 Where the information in Part 1 of this Schedule has not been provided because the PRP is not a Large PRP, the following information shall be given in relation to the period of account:
  - (a) rent receivable excluding service charges
  - (b) service charges receivable
  - (c) revenue, Capital Grants (including how much has been recognised within the accounts through accrual or performance model), Financial Assistance and any other assistance receivable from whatever source
  - (d) Social Housing Activity expenditure
  - (e) operating surplus/deficit and net surplus/deficit from Social Housing Activities
  - (f) void losses (being rental income lost as a result of property not being let, although it is available for letting)

#### Financial Assistance and other government grant receivable

The total accumulated amount of Financial Assistance and other government grant received or receivable at the date of the statement of financial position, based upon properties owned at that date, showing the extent to which amounts have been

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income or are held as deferred income.

#### **External auditors**

- The amount of remuneration, exclusive of VAT, payable in the period of account including sums payable in respect of expenses, of the PRP's external auditors for the auditing of the accounts, including the basis of any apportionments of cost to the PRP, if applicable.
- The amount of any remuneration, in relation to the period of account exclusive of VAT, including sums payable in respect of expenses, of the PRP's external auditors or their associates in respect of services other than those of auditing the accounts<sup>12</sup>. 'Associate' has the same meaning as in Schedule 1 to Statutory Instrument 2008/489 of the Companies Act 2006.

#### Share capital

The balances at the beginning and end of the period of account, together with an analysis of movements in the year and details of any dividends or distributions paid.

#### **Creditors including Recycled Capital Grant Fund**

- In respect of each item shown under creditors in the PRP's statement of financial position:
  - (a) the aggregate amounts of any instrument included under that item in respect of which any security has been given by the PRP together with an indication of the nature of the security given
  - (b) where the nature of the liability is debt, a summary of the main elements, showing terms of payment or repayment, and the rates of interest payable on the debt
  - (c) the aggregate amount of adjustments made to the carrying value of debt in respect of finance costs, discounts and premia
- If it is not practicable to comply with paragraph 26(b) because to do so would result in a statement of excessive length, it shall be sufficient to give a summary of the main elements, showing terms of payment or repayment, and the rates of interest payable on the debts.
- In respect of the RCGF, information as below, which may be (but does not have to be) set out in the format shown in Annex 2. Any amount is to be considered material:
  - (a) a reconciliation between the balance held at the beginning of the period of account and the balance at the end of the period of account, showing amounts added into and taken out of the RCGF
  - (b) the source and use or allocation of funds should be disclosed

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> PRPs subject to the Companies Act may also need to consider the requirements of SI 2008/489 and 2011/2198

(c) the amounts which are outstanding for three or more years or otherwise potentially due for repayment to the Homes and Communities Agency or the Greater London Authority

#### **Disposal Proceeds Fund**

- PRPs must constitute and present the Disposal Proceeds Fund and show it in their accounts in the format shown in Annex 3. Any amount is to be considered material. PRPs are referred to the Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements<sup>13</sup>. The PRP must show, separately for sums arising from disposals inside and outside of the Greater London area<sup>14</sup>:
  - (a) a reconciliation between the balance held at the beginning of the period of account and the balance at the end of the period of account, showing amounts added into and taken out of the DPF
  - (b) the source of funds
  - (c) the use or allocation of funds, separately identifying transfers to other PRPs
  - (d) the amounts in respect of which the PRP has paid from the Disposal Proceeds Fund either to the HCA or GLA<sup>15</sup>
  - (e) the amounts in respect of which the regulator may require repayment of sums in accordance with the Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements<sup>16</sup>.

#### **Rent arrears**

The aggregate amount of gross Social Housing rent arrears, the net present value adjustment where a repayment schedule is in place (and an adjustment has been made and is material) and the amount of any provisions for bad and doubtful debts. Rents paid in advance should be shown as a creditor, not netted off against arrears.

#### Charges

Particulars of any charge on the assets of the PRP to secure the liabilities to any other person or organisation, including, where practicable, the amount secured.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>13</sup> See Glossary for definition and link to that document.

<sup>14</sup> See paragraph 2.2 of Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>15</sup> See paragraph 7.3 of Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>16</sup> See paragraph 7.1-7.2 of Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements

#### **Capital funding and commitments**

- 32 There shall be stated:
  - (a) the aggregated amount of contracts for capital expenditure, so far as not provided for
  - (b) the aggregated amount of capital expenditure approved which has not been contracted for
  - (c) an indication of the proposed financing of such expenditure, showing the amount of grant, agreed loans, loans under negotiation, property sales and any other sources of funding.

#### Other commitments

Particulars shall also be given of any other financial commitments which have not been provided for and are relevant to assessing the PRP's state of affairs.

#### Accommodation owned and in management

The number of units of different types of Social Housing distinguishing between those owned and managed by the PRP at both the start and the end of the period of account. Information should include: General Needs Housing (differentiated between that let at social rent and Affordable Rent levels); Supported Housing; Housing for Older People; and low cost home ownership accommodation (as defined in the Act section 70). This list is not exhaustive and PRPs must provide a full analysis appropriate to their operating circumstances.

#### Accommodation managed by others

Where Social Housing owned by a PRP is being managed on its behalf by another body, the number of units of Social Housing (which refers both to self-contained and non-self-contained homes and bed spaces) accommodation managed by other bodies at the start and the end of the period of account.

#### Related parties

36 Relationships between parents and Subsidiaries and registered and unregistered Group or Associated bodies shall be disclosed irrespective of whether there have been transactions between those related parties. Other related party transactions should be disclosed in accordance with FRS 102, unless otherwise required to satisfy the requirements of paragraphs 4 or 5 of the Schedule.

#### **Group structures**

- 37 There shall be stated:
  - (a) whether the PRP is required by statute to prepare consolidated Group accounts
  - (b) the name of the undertaking which is regarded by the Board as the ultimate parent undertaking of the PRP

details of all entities either within the Group or with which the PRP is
associated, along with details of which are registered with the regulator.
Where this is disclosed within Group accounts of a parent that is registered
with the regulator, this need not be repeated by every Subsidiary

#### Annex 1

#### Glossary of terms

Words and expressions used in this Direction shall, unless the context requires otherwise, have the following meanings:

'Associate' is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, over which the investor has significant influence and that is neither a Subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

'The Act' means the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008.

'Board' means the governing body of a PRP.

'Capital Grant' means the grants listed in section 77(3) of the Act and grants under section 27A of the Housing Act 1996.

'Chief Executive' means the person who has overall responsibility for the running of the day to day affairs of the PRP's Social Housing Activities.

'Director' means a member of the Board of the PRP.

"Disposal Proceeds Fund" or "DPF" means the fund shown separately in a PRPs accounts as required by section 177(1) of the Act, in respect of which the regulator has issued the Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements.

'Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements' means the document 'Disposal Proceeds Fund: Requirements of the Social Housing Regulator 2015' which sets out the regulator's decisions on how it requires PRPs to operate a DPF and which can be found here <a href="https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment\_data/file/419213/DPF\_Requirements\_2015.pdf">https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment\_data/file/419213/DPF\_Requirements\_2015.pdf</a>.

'Financial Assistance' means that provided by the Homes and Communities Agency and/or the Greater London Authority under section 19 of the Act or section 333 ZE of the Greater London Authority Act 1999.

'FRS 102' means the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland as published and amended from time to time by the Financial Reporting Council.

'General Needs Housing' covers the bulk of Social Housing rental accommodation. It includes both self-contained and hostel/shared housing units and bed spaces. General needs housing is stock that is not designated for specific client groups or investment programmes.

'Group' in relation to a PRP means that body and its Subsidiaries and Associates and includes those Subsidiaries and Associates whether or not they are PRPs.

'Housing for Older People' means Social Housing with rules designed to ensure it is made available to older people typically (although not exclusively) aged 55 and older. Homes

should be described as Housing for Older People if they are intended for older people and they either incorporate a range of basic facilities and special design features, the age of tenants actually resident is not a defining feature.

'Key Management Personnel' has the same meaning as set out in section 33.6 of FRS 102, being 'those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity'. Within a PRP these are likely to be members of a board of management, senior management team or equivalent.

'Large PRP' means a PRP which owns more than 1,000 homes on the first day of the period of account.

'Private registered provider' and 'PRP' has the meaning given in section 80(3) of the Act.

'Recycled Capital Grant Fund' and 'RCGF' means the fund used to recycle grant in accordance with procedures and policies specified by the Homes and Communities Agency under sections 32 of the Act and by the Greater London Authority.

'Social Housing' has the meaning given in sections 68 and 77 of the Act.

'Social Housing Activities' means accommodation, facilities or services provided by a registered provider in connection with the provision of Social Housing or its management, as determined by the Board and as discussed in the governance and financial viability standard code of practice.

'Social Housing Lettings" means activities associated with Social Housing accommodation and housing services provided with that accommodation.

'SORP' means the 'Statement of Recommended Practice for registered social housing providers' issued jointly by the National Housing Federation (NHF), Community Housing Cymru, the Northern Ireland Federation of Housing Associations and the Scottish Federation of Housing Associations and published by the NHF, as amended or re-issued from time to time.

'Standards' means the standards set by the regulator using its powers under sections 193 and 194 of the Act.

'Subsidiary' is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership that is controlled by another entity (known as a parent).

'Supported Housing' means Social Housing that is purpose designed or designated to provide support for a particular client group and which fulfils one or more of the following 2 conditions (if one or other of the conditions is not met, it will be General Needs Housing):

- Purpose designed Supported Housing includes buildings that are specially designed or remodelled to encourage independent living or the adjustment to independence. There must be support services provided by the landlord or another organisation
- Designated Supported Housing includes properties that have some or no purpose design features, but which provide accommodation for a specific Supported Housing client group with support services in place to enable

independent living or the adjustment to independence. The support services can be provided by the landlord or another organisation.

Annex 2
Format for disclosure of RCGF balances

Funds pertaining to activities within areas covered by:			GLA
		£000	£000
Opening balance		Χ	X
Inputs to RCGF:	Grants recycled	Χ	X
	Interest accrued	Χ	X
	Transfers from other PRPs	X	Χ
Recycling of grant:	New build	(X)	(X)
	Major repairs and works to existing stock	(X)	(X)
	Transfers to other PRPs	(X)	(X)
	Other	(X)	(X)
Repayment of grant to the HCA/GLA		(X)	(X)
Closing balance		X	X
Amounts 3 years old be required	l or older where repayment may	X	x

#### Annex 3

#### Format for disclosure of DPF balances

Funds pertaining to activities within areas covered by 17:		HCA	GLA
		£000	£000
Opening balance		Χ	Χ
Inputs to DPF	Funds recycled <sup>18</sup>	Χ	X
(source of funds):			
	Net PRTB receipts <sup>19</sup>	X	X
	Certain proceeds of profit making PRPs <sup>20</sup>		
	•	Χ	Χ
	Interest accrued <sup>21</sup>	Χ	X
	Transfers from other PRPs <sup>22</sup>	Χ	Χ
Use/allocation of funds:	New build	(X)	(X)
	Major repairs and works to		
	existing stock	(X)	(X)
	Transfers to other PRPs	(X)	(X)
	Other	(X)	(X)
Repayment of funds to the HCA/GLA		(X)	(X)
Closing balance		X	X
Amounts 3 years old be required <sup>23</sup>	d or older where repayment may	x	X

See paragraph 2.2 of the Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements.

These are the amounts set out in paragraph 2.1.1 of the Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements

Preserved Right to Buy receipts in respect of stock transferred after 31 December 2014

These are the amounts set out in paragraph 2.1.2(a) and 2.1.2(b) of the Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements

See paragraph 4 of the Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements.

These are the amounts set out in paragraph 2.1.2(d) of the Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements

See paragraph 7 of the Disposal Proceeds Fund Requirements

homesandcommunities.co.uk mail@homesandcommunities.co.uk 0300 1234 500



Homes and Communities Agency Fry Building 2 Marsham Street London SW1P 4DF

The Homes and Communities Agency is committed to providing accessible information where possible and we will consider providing information in alternative formats such as large print, audio and Braille upon request.